- U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 7 03Ty 7h B o]
901 N.5" STREET
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101+
R;..L i

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR

In the Matter of

'Drury Developmént Corporation Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0013

St. Louis, Missouri

S e gt St g e

Respondent

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 7, and Drury Development
Corporation (Respondent) have agreed to a settlement of this action before filing of a Complaint,
and thus this action is: simultaneously commenced and concluded pursuant ‘to Rules 22.13(b) and
22. 18(b)(2) of the Consohdated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of -
Civil Penaltaes Issuance of Comphance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Renovatwn
Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and
22.18(b)(2).

~ Section I
Jurisdiction

1. This proceeding is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties

instituted pursuant to Section 16(a) of thé Toxic Substances Céntro} Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C.
'§ 2615(a).
2. This Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFOQ) serves as notice that EPA has

reason to believe that Respondent has violated Section 409 of TSCA, 15 US.C. § 2689, by
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faﬂlng to comply with the regulatory requxrements of 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F, Dzsclosure
of Known Lead-Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or Lease of
Residential Property, promuigated pursuant to Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint |
Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d.
Section II
Parties
3. The Cem;‘ﬁleinant, by delegation from the Admiﬁistrator of EPA and the Regional
Administrator, EPA, Region 7, is the Chief, Toxics and Pesticides Branch, EPA, Relgion 7.
4. The Respondent is Drury Development Corporation, 721 Emerson Road, Suite _
200, St. Louis, Missouri 63141.

"~ Section IIT

Statmorv and Regulatory Backgroued

5. Congrees passed the Residential Iead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992
(the Act), 42 U.S.C §§ 4851 to 4856, to address the need to control exposure to lead-based paint
hazards. The Act amended TSCA by adding Sections 401 to 412, 15 US.C §§ 2681 to 2692.
Section 1018 of the Act required EPA and the Department of Housing and Urban Development
'(HUD) to jointly issue regulations requiring the disclosure of known 1ead~besed paint and/or
lead-based paint hazards by persons selling or leasing housing constructed before the phaseout of
‘reSidentiai lead-based paint use in 1978. The tegulations, issued March 6, 1996, and codified at
40 C.ER. Paﬁ 745 Su‘bpart F, require that sellers and lessors Qf most residential housing built
before 1978: a) disclose the presence of known 1ead.—basea paint and/or lead-based paint hazards

in the target heusmg, b) provide purchasers and lessees with any available records or reports
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pertaining to the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards; c) provide |
purchasers and lessees with a federally approved lead hazard information pamphlet; d) provide |
purchasers with a 10-day opportunity to cond.uct:a risk assessment or inspection for the presence
of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards befofe the purchaser is obligated under any
purchasé contract; ‘énd e) include certain disclosure and acknowledgment language in the sales or
leasing contract. The failure or refusal to coﬁlpiy with the reg”ulationslis a violation of Section
1018 of the Act and Section 409 of TSCA. | |

Section v

General Factual Allegations
6. Respondent is, an(i at all tinies referréd to herein was, a ‘;perscn” within the
meaning of TSCA.
| 7. Respondent is the “lessér” or “agent,” as defined by 40 C.ER. § 745. 103, of the
following single-family rentéi units (“the Properties™):

6130 Eveline Street, St. Louis, Missouri
2129 Esther Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri
6104 Eveline Street, St. Louis, Missouri
4520 Country Lane, St. Ann, Missouri
11014 St. Ambrose, St. Ann
10917 Pear Tree Lane, St. Ann, Missouri
10041 Douglass Court, St. Ann, Missouri
10877 Pear Tree Lane, St. Ann, Missouri
10037.Douglass Court, St. Ann
10885 Pear Tree Lane, St. Ann, Missouri

TrER tMe e o

8. The Properties‘ were constructed before 1978.

9. The Properties are “target housing” as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103.
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Violations

10.  The Complainant hereby states and alleges that Respondent has violated TSCA

and federa:1 regulations promulgated thereunder, as follows:
| Count 1

11. The‘ facts stated in Paragraphs 1 through 9 above are herein incorporated.

12.  Information collected during and EPA review of Respondent’s records on or
about Decembe_r 9, 2008, shows that Respondent entered into contracts to lease the Properties
during the time period from January 19, 2007, through November 1, 2007.

13.  Information collected shows that for all leases for the Properties executed during
- the timé period from January 19, 2007, through November 1, 2007, Resiaondent failed to provide
the lessee with an EPA-approved lead hazard information pamphiet and failed to provide a lead
warmng statement before lessee was obhgated under contract to lease the target housing unit.

14.  Respondent’s failure to perform the acts mdxca’ted in paragraph 13 above are
v1olat10ns of 40 C.F.R. §§ 745. 107 745.113, and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.118(e),
violations of Section 1018 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 48524, and Sectxon 409 of TSCA, 15U. S C.

§ 2689, and thus Respondent is subject to civil penalties under Section 16 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C.

§.2615.
Section V
Consent Agreement
15. Fo,r purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegétions

set forth above.

16.  Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set forth above.
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17. -Respondent waives its right to contest any issue of fact or law set forth above and
its right to appeal_ the Final Order accompanying this Consent Agreement.

18.  Respondent and EPA agree to conciliate this matter without the necessity of a
formal hearing and to bear their fespective costs and attorney’s fees.

19.  Respondent certifies by the signing of this Consent Agreément and Final Order
that it is presently in compliance with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 745, Subpart F,

20. - Respondent consents to the issuance of the Final Order hereinafter recited and
consents to the payment of a civil pehaity as specified i_n the Final Order.

21, fayment of this civil penalty in full shall re$olve all civil and administrative
claims ‘for all violations of Section 409 of TSCA, 15 US.C. 2689 and 40 C.F.R. Subpart F
alleged in this document. | |

22.  In settlement of this rﬁatter, Respondent agrees to complete the following
Suppléméntal Environmental Project (SEP), which the parties agree is intended to secure
significant environmental and/or public health benefits: Lead-based paint abafefnent work to be
performed at 4540 Edmundson Road, 4544 Edmundson Road, 4542 Holman and 10877 Pear
Tree Lane, to include removal and replacement of 54 lead-based painted Windows with lead free
windows and voluntary necessafy alternative accommodations for tenants during the aﬁatemcnt
work. The SEP is further detailed in Atfachment A to this Consent Agfeement and Final Order.

23.  Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Final Order, Respondent will
provide EPA with a copy of the ]etter sent to the Misséuri Department of Health and Senior
Services informing the state of Respondent’s intent to pe’r'fqrm a SEP and requesting procedufal

information pertaining to performance of the SEP.
Page 5 of 13



IN THE MATTER OF Drury Development Corporation
Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0013

24, The total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than $31,311 and the SEP shall
be completed no later than 90 days from effective date of the final order. All work required to
complete the S.,E'P;shali. be perfqrmed in complianée with all federal, state, and local laws and
regulations. |

25.  Respondent agrees _thét the abatement work on the SEP project referenced in
Paragraph 22 above will be performed by entities licensed and/or certified by the state of
Missouri to perform lead-based paint abatement activities. Respondené is responsible for
ensuring that the entity or entities performing the SEP project described in Paragraph 22 above
receive a coﬁy of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO} and all attachments

- pertaining to the SEP ‘projec-t including the EPA approved SEP Work Plan, if applicable.

Respondent is responsible for any failure to complete the SEP in accordance with all applicable

terms of this agreement.

26.  Within thirty (30) days of corﬁpietion of the SEP, Respondent shall submit a SEP
Completion Report to EPA, with a copy to the state agency identified below. The SEP
Completion Report shall contain the foliowing:

(i)' A detaiied description of the SEP as imp_ierﬁented;
| (ii.) Itemized costs, documented by copies of burchase orders, rebeipts or
canceled checké; . |
| (1ii) | The final abaterﬁeﬁt report, as required by state law; .'and
- (iv) . The following certification signed by Respondent, or if Respondent is a

corporation, an officer of the corporation:
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I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the

information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my

inguiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information,

the information is true, accurate, and complete. I'am aware that there are significant

penalties for submitting false mformatzon mcludzng the posmbxhty of fines and
‘ lmprlsonment

The report shall be directed to the following:’

As to EPA:

Stephven Richard

WWPD/TOPE

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7

901 North 5 Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

As to the state:

Brandon Rekus

Missouri Department of Health and Senior Semces

930 Wildwood

Jefferson City, MO 65109

27.  Ifthe SEP referenced in Paragraph 22 above is not timely completed to the
satisfaction of EPA in accordance with the terms of this Final Order, Respondent shall pay a
stipulated penalty in the amount of 100% of the proj'ected costs of the SEP minus.any
documented expenditures determined by EPA to be acceptable for the SEP. | This stipulated
penalty is consistent with the EPA SEP Policy,'effective May 1, 1998. For the SEP, the
following instances constitute a failure to complete the project in accordance with the terms of
this Final Order:

(1) Failure to expend the funds in a manner acceptable to EPA or otherwise

to complete the project pursuant to the terms of this consent algreemént.

(i)  Failure to ensuré through good faith and timely efforts, that the SEP

project is completed by the ant1c1pated completion date of within mnety (90) of the effective
Page 7ofl3



IN THE MATTER OF Drury Development Corporation
Docket No. TSCA-07-2009-0013

date of the Final Order. In the event of circumstances beyond its control rcndcring the
- anticipated completion date unfeasible, Respondent may demc;nstrat_e good faith by i)romptly
notifying the EPA Region 7 confact identified in Paragraph 26 above of the change in
circumstances and proposing a new comp}etion date acceptable to EPA for the SEP.

| (iii)  Any stipulated penalties for which Respondent is liable under this
agreemént shall be due and payable within ten (10) days of Respondent’s receipt of a written
demand fro;ﬁ Complainant.

28.  Respondent certifies that it is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any
federal, state or Ioéai law or regulation; npr is R'espondent required to perform or develop the
SEP by agreement, grant or as injunctive 'rélief in this or any other case or £o compl? with state
or local requirements. Respondent further 6ertiﬁes that Respondent has not received, and is not
presently ﬁegotiating to receive, credit in any other enforcement action for the SEP.

29.  For federal income tax purposes, Rfaspondent agrees that it will neither capitalize

into iﬁvcntory or basis nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in ﬁerfor_ming the SEP.

30, Any'public statement, "oral or written, in print, film or othér media, made by
Respondent making reference to the SEP shall include the following language: “This project
was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action taken by thé United
States Environmental Protection Agency.” |

3 1 : Respbndent understands that its failufe to timely pay any portion of the .civil
penalty described in Paragraph 1 of the Final Order below or any portion of a stipulated penalty
as s_tated in Paragraph 24 above may result in the commencement ofa ciﬁ} action in Federal

District Court to recover the full remaining balance, along with penalties and accumulated | |
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interest. In such case, interest shall accrue thereon at the applicable statutory rate on the unpaid
balance until such civil or stipulated penalty and any accrued interest are paid in full. A late
payment handling charge of $15 will be imposed after thirty (30) days and an additional $15 will
be charge for each subseqﬁent thirty (30) day period. Addition'ali'y, as provided by 31 U.S.C.
§ 3717(8)(2), a six percent (6%) per annum penalty (late charge) may be assessed on any amount
~ not paid within nineity(QO)_days of the due date.

Section VI

Final Order

Pursuant to the provisions of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15U.S.C.

§§ 2601-2692, and based upon the information set forth in the Consent Agreement accompanying'
this Final Order, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

. I Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Three Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-Nine
Dollars ($3,479) within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Final Order. Such payment
shall identify Respondent by name and docket number and shall be by certified or. cashier’s
check made payable to the "United States TreaSury” and sent to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, Missouri 63 1'97f9000
‘Wire transfers should be directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York:
Federal Reserve Bank of New York .
ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727

SWIFET address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
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New York, NY 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read

“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

2. A copy of the check or other information confirming payment shall simultaneously be
sent to the following:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Regxon 7

901 North 5™ Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and -

Robert W. Richards, Attorney

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Reglon 7

901 North 5" Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

3. Respondent shall complete the Supplemental Environmental Project in accordance
with the provisions set forth in the Consent Agreement and shall be liable for any stipulated
penalty for failure to complete such project as specified in the Consent Agreement.

4. Respondent and Complainant shall each bear their own costs and attorneys' fees

incurred as a result of this matter.
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RESPONDENT _
DRURY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION . :

. Date: /MA’L? "7”, MO{’? _By: ' _/%2 |

- 7
Print Name f

7 v7HY M. duty .ffﬂﬁ"g )
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COMPLAINANT
U. S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

» o | \
Date: \(//j’/ C)Q - By: ul /27&\
Jamie Green, Branch Chief '
oxics and Pesticides Branch

Water, Wetlands and Pesticides Division

. Date: .{3//?21/0@ - By: | M c//v\,/[?L/

Robert W. Richards, Assistant Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel
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IT IS SO ORDERED. This Order shail become effective 1mmed1ately

e //M 2, 7] g/ﬂzﬁf

(ROBERT L. PATRICK
- Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7
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ATTACHMENT A

SEP PROJECT
DRURY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SEP Location:

4540 Edmundson Road, 4544 Edmundson Road, 4542 Holman and 10877 Pear Tree Lane, City
of St. Louis, Missouri.

SEP Activities:

Drury Development Corporation shall undertake a Special Environmental Project (SEP)
involving the replacement of the windows at these four properties at a cost of $26,300.00.
Related Limited Lead Based Paint Inspéctions for this project have already been completed, in
response to negotiations for this SEP, in the amount of $1,124.00. The SEP shall also include
post replacement testing to certify completion of the project, which is not expected to exceed
$1,000.00. ' -

Since these properties are occupied, the tenants will have to be voluntarily relocated while the
SEP is being performed. Tenants who do not voluntarily relocate (for example, stay with
relatives) will not be compensated and the costs below will not be considered for SEP offset.
Drury Development Corporation shall provide the tenants with alternate housing at the Pear Tree
Inn at 10810 Pear Tree Lane, St. Ann, Missouri and with a food stipend. The tenants at each
property will need to be relocated for five days/nights, Based on the number of tenants currently
residing in each property Drury Development Corporation estimates the temporary relocation
costs for the SEP in the following amounts: ' '

4540 Bdmundson Road
2 adults/1 child | ' :
1 room x standard room rate = $103.49 (tax included) x S nights = §517.45

4544 Edmundson Road
2 adults/2 children
1 room x standard room rate = $103.49 (tax included) x 5 nights = $517.45

10877 Pear Tree Lane
1 adult/3 children (two teenagers) ' ' ' ‘
2 rooms x standard room rate = $103.49 (tax included) x 5 nights = $1,034.90

4542 Holman |
1 adult ‘ - ,
1 room x standard room rate = $103.49 (tax included) x 5 nights = $517.45

Total Room Cost:  $2,587.25



Page 2 of 2

In addition, Drury Development Corporation shall provide the tenants withra food stipend for
each day that they are displaced from their homes. The Pear Tree Inn provides breakfast
(included in the room rate), therefore, Drury Development Corporation will provide a food
stipend of $25.00 per day per person to cover their lunch and evening meal. Based on the’
number of current occupants (listed above), that would be 12 X $25.00 X5 days = $1,500.00.

Therefore, the room and food costs associated With this SEP is anticipated to be $4,087.25 and
the total estimated costs for the SEP is $26,300.00 + $2,124.00 + $4,087.25 = $32,511.25.

All abatement work will be performed by certified lead abatement contractors.



Abatement SEP Work Plan
Respondent: Drury Development Corporatzon

Address of target housing: (1) 4540 Edmundson Road, (2) 4544 Edmundson Road
(3) 10877 Pear Tree Lane, (4) 4542 Holman

Property Owner: Drury Development Corporation

Properties are currently: Occupied

Scope of work:

Lead-based paint abatement work to be performed at the target housing identified
above will include removal and replacement of 54 lead-based painted windows
with lead free windows and encapsulation of window sills and casings. Credit’
will also be given for voluntary necessary relocation accommodations for tenants
during the abatement work.

All work must be performed by and/or under the supervision of licensed/certified lead-

based paint professionals, following the required safe work practices and all other requirements. .
All work must be performed in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and
regulations. : ' <

5.

Licensed lead-based professionals/firm.

Spray Services Incorporated, 20 Chamber Dmvé Washmgton MO 63 090
(636)239-0404

“Cost Estimate: $3/,311

Planned work start date:

(to be filled out by respondent)

The Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services Lead Licensing Program must
receive writien notice before the work is started on a lead-based paint abatement project.
Within thirty days of the effective date of the consent agreement/final ovder, this writien
notification must be provided to the state, and copies must be provided to the Saint Louis
County Health Department and EPA Region 7.

Estimated work completion date:

(to be filled out by respondent)

All work must be completed within ninety days of the effective date of the consent
agreement/final order. '

Repért completion date:

~(to be filled out by EPA)



10. The SEP Completion Report must be compléted and submitted to EPA Region 7,
and a copy sent to the state, within thirty days aﬁer the completion of the SEP.
This report must include:

A detailed description of the SEP as zmplemented
Ttemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders, recezpts or canceled
checks '

e the final abatement report prepared by the contractor, as required by state
law.

EPA will review the fi nal SEP reporl and notify the Respondent whether the report is, or
is not, Satzsfaclory

Mailing Addresses for Notifications and Reports described above:

EPA Region 7

901 North 5" Street
- WWPD/TOPE

Attention: Stephven Richard
901 North 5™ Street

Kansas City, KS 66101

Missouri Department of Healtk and Senior Services

Lead Licensing Program
Attention: Brandon Rekus
930 Wildwood

Jefferson City, MO 65109

Saint Louis County Health Department

Lead Poisoning Prevention & Healthy Homes Branch
111 South Meramec Avenue

Clayton, MO 63105
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true and correct copy of the fdregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order
was sent this day in the following manmer to the addressees:

Copy hand delivered to
Attorney. for Complainant:

Robert W. Richards

Assistant Regional Counsel

Region VII

United States Environmental Protection Agency
901 N. 5" Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

Copy by Certified Mail Return Receipt to:

David E. Wilson

Associate General Counsel
Drury Development Corporation
721 Emerson Road, Suite 200
St. Louis, Missouri 63141

Kathy Robinson 0
Hearing Clerk, Region 7




